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PLC’s Chapel - Music - Speech Building to Becpme Reality

CONTRACTS AWARDED FOR BUILDING T0
COST APPROXIMATELY $625,000

Bicds for the Chapel-Music-Speech
huilding were opencd in the Colleac
June 8. firms
we e awarded contracts totaline
$328,871. Yo this basic figure must
be added 9%, which equals the
architect’s fee plus the Washington

on Three Tacoma

saled tax, for a total of $47,598.59. |

Thus the building without furnish-
ing and cquipment will cost $375,-
+69.39. the main
building fer 1200 pcople will cost
appreximalely $23,000. To this fiz-
ure must be added other equipment
such as pianos, chairs, curtains, stage

The scating in
g

equipment, ete,, which makes the
total approxiinately $625,000.

The Board of Trustees and the
Business Monager of the College

have spent many months woing over
the possible sources of incomne in er-
der to cever the cost of the same.
Needless to say to the many well-
informed fricnds eof the College, this
will not be an casy task for those on
whoi the vesponsibility falls mest
heavily. In addition to the cash on
hand and in banks, it will be ncces-
sary for the United Christian Edu-
ation Appeal in the E.L.C. to come
through with 1ts $2,000,000 goal in-
tact. It will be necessary for the
Northwestern District to reach fits
mininis goal of-$400,000, T awill
be necessary te gsct the support of
the prople in Tacoma to refund the
entirc $250,000 which was spent en
the gymnastum where there is still
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585,675 to be raised. P.L.C. has no
[egal right to expect this, but the
good will and friendliness en the
part of twenty or thicty leading Ta-
coma people give the administration
hope that that sum will be reached
by Deccember 31, 1951, Added

that 1s a speeial chapel pledge which

to

will be very important in the com-
plete furnishing of the buildinz. And
finally, it will be esscutial that the
Roll Call and Development Associa-
tion, which depends upon the yearly
offerings in the congregations, will
be this year and next year maximums
in the ingathering.
Class of 1950 Pledges $7,500

Special miention should be made
of the pledge of $7,500 made by the
Graduating Class of 1930, this suin
to be used in paying {or the steeple
on the building and tower chimes,
which will ring out the daily class
hounis and give music at chepel time
as the students, faculty and admini-
stration comc¢ and go from that im-
portant hour at 9:10 o'clock ecach
class day morning.

Thus, it is evident to every reader
of these lines that the contract has
been let and the building is in pro-
cess of being sct up with a great deal
of faith involved. Let us pray that
God bluss the thousands of
fricnds of the Cellege with willing-
ness to support the institution with

will

their prayers, good will, the young
people who are to be students and
future leadcers, with eifts both large
and small, so that the name of God
will be gtorified and His kingdom
built through Christian highcr eda-
cation for the Church, for America
and the world.
Ready in 1951

Construction of the new Chapel-

{ X s :
Music-Speech building is under way.

It is expected that the building will
be completed by September 1, 1951.
Lea-Pcarson and Richards, Tacoma
architectural firm, designed the
building and will supervise construc-
Mr. Kenneth Jacobs,
Manager at the College, will be the
clerk-of-the-works. Meinbers of the
Building Comnmittee include Dr. H.
L. Fost of Seattle, Chairman; the
Rev. T. J. Moltcr, Vice-Chairman,
Pastor of Luthe¢r Memorial Church
Tacoma; Dr. S. €. Eastveld,
President of the College; Morris E.
Ford, Supcrintendent of Schools for
the Franklin Pierce School District,

Parkland; Arne Strand, Principal of

tion.

in

Sumner High School; Francis E.
Edlund of Olvmpia.
'ourth Major Project
This new steucturc will be the

fourth inajor project to be added to
thr Pacific Lutheran cainpus in the
past four vears, under the admini-
stration of President Eastveld. The
library has been completed and Old
Main completely refurbished at a
commbined cost of about $350,000
during that four-year period.

The new building will be of re-
inforced concrete construction, hrick
vencered, with cast stone trim. The
general type of avchitecture and the
color of the brick and stone will har-
the Science Hall, Li-
brary and Student Union.

monize with

Plant |

COMPLETEION DATE: AUGUST 14, 1951

Located directly west of (Old Main,
the building will form @ quadrangle
with the Science Hall, Library and
Old Main.

Ovcer 21,000 Square Feet

The building will be 231 feet long
and 154 feet wide. It will cover
21,728 squaie feet on the ground.
By comparison this is about 50%
targcer on the ground than is Old
Main, which was sct up on the cam-
pus and dedicated on October 14,
1894.

The Chapel Music.Soerch huild-
ing will form the uptight part of the
“T” shaped building and will run
cast and west with the main centrance
on the cast facing Old Main. The
stage, music and sperch sections will
be
north and south.

Seating for 1200

The auditorium will seat 900 on
the main floor and 300 in the bal-
' cony, for a total scating capacity of
1200. The balcony will be equipped
with University chairs so that it can
be utilized as a larac lecture room.

in a three-story onit running

There will be curtains in the audi-
torium so that it can be divided into
three sections. The balecony can be
closcd off, as can be the arca under
the balcony. This will lcave a scating
capacity of 600 in the arca closest
| to the stage.

The the largest in
cducarional circles the Pacific
Coast. It will be 36 fect deep and

stage will be
on

eridirion 5% fert above the
floor, and the distance from
floor ta the tep will be 75 feet.
Orchestra Pit
There will be an orchestra pit in
front of the stage. Fxcavation facili-
ties will be included so that some
time in the future an hydraulic sys-
tem can be installed the
| orchestra platforin to the level of

stage
the

to ralsc
the stage.

A tly gallery will be installed 20
feet above the stage floor with a
complete system of counterweights.

Omn onc side ef the stage there will
bc a switchboard rcom with a glass
pancl facing the stage. On the other
side there will be o public address
and radio control room. This will
make it possible to broadcast pro-
grams direct from the auditoriumn.

IHuge Pipe Organ

A huge pipe organ will be

talled in the auditorium with the
Continucd on ®age Four)

in-

72 feet wide, There will be a steel |

IUnited Christian
Appeal Gaining

The 1948 biennial convention of
the Evanelical Lutheran Church au-
thorized an appeal for its twelve in-

stitutions of learning in the amount

of $2,000,000. It is hardly nccessary

appeal has been “slow, but sure.” To
date the total receipts amount to
a little more than $1,200,000. It
tneans that befere the end of 1950
the coneregations of the E.L.C. will
hove to raise almost $800,000. This
can be done! It is very hmportant
that this goal is reached, especialiy
for Pacific Lutheran College. If we
fail in this appeal, it will mean that
the College will need
moncy te complete its Chapel-Music-
Speech buiding. The Pacific District
will very likely recach the minimum
goal it for thc appeal.
Eighty per cent of that goal has
been achieved by July 1, 1950. With
six months to go, we should go over
the top in the Pacific District. The

to Derrow

assigncd

over the top almost 70%: and will
possibly reach 200% of its minitum
goal.

The following resolution, which
was presented to the biennial con-
vention of the Evangelical Lutheran
Church by the Church Ceuncil
through its Secrctary, Dr. Nils Kev-
cn, was unanimously adopted by the
| General Convention: “Be it resolved,
that every effort be put forth for the
earliest possible completion of this
task and that congregations not hav-
ing completed their ingathering be
urged to do so at the earliest possible
opportunity.” Thus the stamp of ap-
proval has been placed upon the
program of ingathering.

The committee dealing with this,
under the able leadership of Dr.

months of September, October and
November for a genceral “clean np”
of the appeal. Let us work, pray and
give so that the Church’s record in

will stand out as an example of what
can be done when faith and deter-
mination have joined together in a

iwrcat enterprise.
The general Church convention
march

gave a unanimous [orward

| command. Iet's all go!

to mention that the progress of the :

Rocky Mountain District has gone |

Mars Dale, has decided to use the |

this important mid-century appeal |

Northwest District
Unanimously Backs
Appeal for $100,000

The Northwestern District of the
American Lutheran Church, at its
annual convention held in the Stu-
dent Union Building at the College
June 5 to 9, unanimously passed the
following presented by
the Stewardship and Finance Com-

resoluutions

mittee:

WHEREAS, the
District of the Amecrican Lutheran
Church has carlier, through its two
Conferences, resolved to set o mini-
mum goal of $100,000 tor Christian
Hicher Education, the same in the
Vinterest of Pacific Lutheran College,

Northwestern

and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees
of Pacific Lutheran Collcyce en
Thursday, Junc 8, let a contract for
the of the Chapel-
Music-Specch  building for a tetal
of $528,000 for thc general con-
tracts, plus fixtures and furniture,
| bringing the total to approximately
{ $600,000, and

WHEREAS, it is dcfinitely un-
derstood that the full amount of
$100,000 is absolutely essential to
the ercction ef said building, and

WHEREAS, a number of the par-
islies Digtrice
are alrcady in process of raising the
mininum allocation to each parish
so that 279 familics have contributed
a total average of $77.69 per pledge,

erection new

¥ Ml T el -
i e Motk weiters

and

WHEREAS, the plan for the In-
sathering as outlined by the Amer-
ican Lutheran Church as such sets
forth the program to simnply contact
cvery member of every congregation

for a gencerous gift for the school in

| its arca, this solicitation to take place
| beginning Sunday, June 11, 1950,
or on some later date selected iy
the congregation,

THEREFORE, BE IT RE-
SOLVED,

THAT, we extend our thanks and
appreciation to the pastors and lay
| people of the varions congregations
lwho have already started the solici-
tation and have set the high stand-
ard of giving as an example for the
others who have just gotten ready
to start er who will be doing the
work during 1950, and

THAT, the Northwestern District
in  Convention assembled  urgently
request every pastor and delegate at
the Convention, together with every
| member in cvery congregation to
join wholeheartedly together in the
|Ingathcring so that the full mini-
mum goal will be reached or passed,
and

THAT, every confirmed member
and ¢very hecad of every family
should be contacted personally ac-
cording to the plan of the American

| Lutheran Charch and especially as
sct forth in the resolutions of the
Northwestern District, and

THAT, every pastor or dclegate
representing the pastor ot this Con-
vention contact the Arca Keyinan
for the purpose of sccuring Manuals,
sufficient pledge books for the In-
eothering, and to announce the dates
when it is expected the solicitation

| {Continued on Page Four)
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P.L.C. RE-ORGANIZES MUSIC DEPT.

The hopes, aspirations and dreams
fer a great Music Department at
Pacific Luthcran College arc dcfi-
nitely under way. After many ycars
of study and planning, the Board of
Trustees at its mecting on April 13,
1950, passed the following resolu-
tions:

“WHEREAS, it is expected that
within the ncar future the new build-
ing for Chapel, Music and Specch
will be a reality on the campus, and

“WHEREAS, it is the conviction
of the Board that the entirc Music
Department is in nced of cxpansion
and reorganization both as to cur-
riculum and staff, and

“WHFEREAS, the title of Director
of Music has been alternately held
during recent years by two very able

musicians, namely, Mr. Gunnar J.

Malmin and Mr. Karl E. Weiss, re-
spectively, and

“WHEREAS, it is thc conviction ;

of the Board that it would be to the
best interest of the College if both
of these excellent musicians were to
be drafted into leadership and re-
sponsibility in the expansion pro-
cess, and

“WHLEREAS, this whole program
should be initiated at once to be
prepared for the full usc of the new
facilities,

“THEREFORE BE IT RE-
SOLVED

“THAT, for the timc being the
title of “Dircctor of Choral Music”
be given to Mr. Gunnar J. Malmin,
and that the title of “Dircctor of
Instrumental Music” be given to Mr.
Karl E. Weiss, respectively, with the
request that they share the responsi-
bility in the music program which
lies immediatcly before us in the
College, and

“THAT, a Committee on Rcor-
ganization ke established to consist
of the two gentlemen aforementioned
together with the Dean of the Col-
lege with the responsibility for re-
organization, and that their plans,
program and recommecndations be
submitted to the President of the
College for approval as soon as pos-
sible following this Board meceting.”

Following scveral sessions by the
“Committce on Reorganization,” it
was decided that the entire Music
Faculty present at the College should
be re-engaged. It was also regarded
as a “must” that a full time man
teacher with a baritone quality of
voice should be engaged, as well as
a full time director of band and
orchestra should be added to the
staff. After careful investigation, two
excellent musicians in these two
fields, respectively, have been se-
cured and will join the staff on
September 1, 1950.

Pictured herewith on this page are
the two ncw teachers with their
vitas, and the tcachers who are pres-
ently on the staff with the small cuts
taken from the 1950 SAGA. It is
with a great deal of pleasure that
the administration presents this
splendid faculty of musicians to the
present and future students of Pacific
Lutheran College.

¥

Frederick Newnham
ARAM., ARCM., LRAM,

Baritone and Organ — Teacher of Singing
and Voice Production

Following considerable correspond-
‘cnce and a personal metting and
| audition with Frederick L. Newn-
ham, agc 46, the samc being held
in the WCAL studios in Minneapo-
lis, Minnesota, a contract was signed
for the coming school year, 1950-51,
with the Pacific Luthcran College
Department of Music.
|  The coming of Mr. Newnham to
ljnin our staf{f brings to the forc the
| fact that he has given recitals in
| London, New York, Montreal, To-
ronto, ctc., and has been a guest
artist on B.B.C. and N.B.C. Hc was
cducated at Borough Bchool and
Madras College, St. Andrews, Fife,
Scotland. In 1916-1919 he served as
Scaman Cadet Merchant Fleet Aux-
iliary, Munition Transport Secction.
Prom 1919 to 1922 he attended
Madras College, St. Andrews, Fife,
Scotland, and was organist and choir
master at St. James Church, St. An-
drews, Scotland. From 1922 to 1925
he was a student at the Royal Acad-
cmy of Music, London, England,
assistant organist and choir master
St. Columbia Church of Scotland,
London, assistant conductor Lon-
dar's Scottish Choir and accompan-
ist Great Eastern Railways Male
Chorus. From 1925 to 1927 he was
supervisor of music Scottish Educa-
tion Department, Cupar, Fife. From
11927 to 1933 he was head of the
vocal department and associate pro-
fessor of organ Acadia University,
Nova Scotia, conductor of Acadia
Madrigal Choir, Chorus Master Op-
cratic Socicty, and lecturer in high
school music methods. He was solo-
ist with all the leading choral unions
in Nova Scotia. During 1933-35 he
was hcad of the vocal department
Cionscrvatory of Music (Dalhousie
University) and Maritime Academy
| of Music, lecturer in Church Music
and Diction, Pine Hill Divinity Col-
lege, Halifax, founder and conductor
of the YMCA Male Choir, Halifax,
soloist CBS and NBC networks, re-
cital Town Hall, New York, Wig-
more Hall, London, Eng. During
1935-1938 he was director of music,
Western Ontario Conservatory, Lon-
don, Ontario, and director of music

| University of Western Ontario, con-

i | ductor University Choral Union and

Orchestra, Western Ontario Conser-
vatory Singers and Huron College
Male Choir, and lecturer in Church
Music and Diction, Huron College.
Soloist with most of the leading
choral groups in Ontario, Mendlc-
ssohn Choir, Toronto Symphony,
University Choral Union, Ann Ar-
bor, Battle Creck. During 1938-40

he 1eturned to London, England,
soloist BBC. rcgional, national and
overscas programs, solist St

Michacl's Cornhill Festival, record-
ing for Radio Luxcinburg and Nor-
many, appointed principal lyric bar-
itone and Chorus Master, The Carl
Rosa Opera Company. During 1940-
44 he returned to Canada to rejoin
the Reserve Army Unit (6th Cana-
dian Machine Gun Corps), trans-
ferred to Training Branch under the
Labour Dept., Ottawa, supecrvisor
in charge of Training Schools Dc-
fense Industries Ltd. (small arms),
some broadcasting for the CBS with
the Symphony for War Loans. In
1944 he was transferred to Calgary
and was soon aftcr appointed organ-
ist and choirmaster of Wesley Unit-
ed Church, founder and conductor
of Allicd Arts String Ensemblc and
of the Wesley Choral Socicty, and
lecturer for the University Woincns
Club, Adult Education Dept. Soloist
CBC  western  networks, Women's
Music Clubs, Calgary, Ednmionton,
Regina. Conductor Excclsior Male
Choir (Gencral Motors), broadcasts
over western networks.

During the past three seasons Mr.
Newnham's pupils have taken cvery
major award in the local and pro-
vincial festivals. They havce also rep-
resented Alberta for three years in
the Donunion Wide “Singing Stais
of Tomorrow” program in Toronto,
two of them reaching the semi-finals,
Another of his young singcrs was
awarded a $500 scholarship by the
Toronto Conscrvatory last scason.
This scason the Birks Awards Schol-
arship (Vocal Division) was also
awarded to one of his singers, with
another taking second place. This
was Provincial Wide.

Mr. Newnham has been a member
of Rotary since 1933, with his extra-
curricular activities including golf-
ing, fishing, sailing and hunting. He
is a member of the Anglican Church.

Mr. Newnham visited Scotland in
1949, rcturning to Canada in 1950.
During the time he has been in Win-
nipeg, his pupils have been awarded
three open vocal scholarships. They
also took most of the open vocal
class awards at the 1950 Manitoba
Music Festival, He founded the Win-
nipeg Rotary Male Choir and has
been the guest soloist with the Win-
nipeg Ladics Music Club. His church
choir has made a numbcr of very
successful broadcasts over the CBC
network during the past season.

Frederick L. Newnham is an asso-
ciate of the Royal Academy of Music
(honoris causa), a licentiate of the
Royal Academy of Music (singing
performers), London, England, an
associate of the Royal College of

Harley I. Christopherson
Band and Orchestra

Pacific Luthcran College has been
most fortunate in securing the serv-
ices of Harley I. Christopherson, age
36, to take over band and orchestra
during the school ycar 1950-51. He
is a graduate of Augustana College,
Sioux Falls, South Dakota, 1934. He
rcceived the Master of Arts degree
at the University of Michigan, Ann
Arbor, Michigan, and the Master of
Music from the University of South
Dakota, Vermillion, S. D., in 1946.
He has had wide experience in band,
orchestra, and as a voice teacher,
in Rock Valley, Iowa High School,
New Underwood, South Dakota
High School, Leola, South Dakota

South Dakota High School 1s one of
the outstanding institutions im its
class in the field of music. The school
employs a full time bandmaster and
an assistant bandmaster.

Mr. Christopherson took over the
orchestra at the Aberdeen High
School with fifteen members in the
organization and todav it has 63
members in a state-wide winning
organization in contests with other
schools. He also has placed in na-
tional contcsts.

At the time Dr. Eastvold
viewed Mr. Chnstopherson at Aber-
decn, South Dakota, he was holding
an offer to take over the entire music
departnient of the Boise, Idaho, pub-
lic schoals. Preferring to be in col-
lege and to work with the young
people in a Christian college, Mr.
Christopherson turned down that
fine offer to work at Pacific Lu-
theran.

inter-

High School and at Aberdeen, South |
Dakota High School. The Aberdcen |

Music (singing performers), Lon-
don, England, holds a certificate of
merit in organ and pianoforte teach-
ing. He is a silver medallist, organ
playing and choir training, R.A.M.
He holds a tcacher training certifi-
cate, R.A.M., English Educational
Dcpartment.

Pacific Lutheran College is most
fortunate in securing this intcrna-
tionally known musician to join its
music faculty. He is an artist in
opcra, recitals, voice placement, in-
terpretation, and as an organist and
choirmaster. It is expected that Mr.
Ncwnham will arrive in Parkland
about September 7. Mrs. Newnham
is living with her aged niother in
Scotland.

| His success in scholarships, as a
teacher, and as a colleague in the
positions he has held insurcs the suc-
cess of Mr. Christopherson at Pacific
Lutheran, He will arrive in Parkland
with his wife and two children the
lattcr part of August, and it is ex-
pected that he will occupy the house
now being used by Professor and
Mrs. F. Byard Fritts of the music

| faculty of P.L.C.

i The first projccts that will occupy
the attention of Mr. Christopherson
will be to spend the $4,000 on hand
for band uniforms and equipment
and to solicit the students that will
make up the nucleus of his band and
orchestra for the coming year. One
of his superintendents made the fol-
lowing remark: “Mr. Christopher-
son’s only fault is that he works toc
hard for his own health. He has the
good habit of getting along with
people and strictly tends to his own
business.”

In the various positions Mr. Chris-
topherson has held he has received
the testimony that hc is able to take
raw material, and in a very reason-
ablc amount of time bring then:
around into a concert band and or-
chestra quality. He is a teacher
¢quipped to give lessons on all band
and orchestra instruments, as well
as voice lessons.

Mr. Christopherson is a member
|of the American Luthcran Church,
‘lAbcrdvcn, South Dakota.

Four profcssors’ children, who are
the youngest in their respective fami-
lies, and who have been in school
together almost constantly since the
first grade, were in this year's grad-
uvating class. They arc Lawrence
Hauge, son of Dr. Philip E. Hauge,
| Dean of the College and Registrar;
Helen Ramstad Kyllo, daughter of
Rev. A. W. Rainstad, Professor in
Chemistry; Marilyn Pflueger, daugh-
ter of Dr. J. P. Pflueger, Professor
in Religion and Philosophy; and
| Richard Svarc, son of Rev. T. (.
Svarce, Professor in Norse and Ger-
man.

On an everage of once a week the
pastors of nearby Lutheran churches
have spoken to the students at the
regular College chapel period held
cach morning at 9:40 a.m,

Wedding bells pealed many times
during the late spring and ecarly
summer for P.L.C. twosomes. Again
this summer we have had many
members of the student body making
the trip down the aisle. All of us at
Pacific Lutheran Clollege join in
praying God that the best possible
blessings will be showered upon these
young people who enter into home-
making and into their carcers.

Ninety-nine cadet teachers from
the P.L.C. Department of Education
gained their first actual tcaching
cxperience during the spring scmes-
ter in the clementary and high
schools in Tacoma and Pierce
county.

New Students

APPLY FOR ENTRANCE
BY MAIL

NOW!

Gunnar J. Malmin, Birector
Choral Music and Choir

Dorothy Brann Malmin
Organ

Gudrun

B

] "

Ness Ranning
Yoice

Karl E. Weiss, Director
[nstrumental Music, Pianc

Mabel Metz Diits
Yoice

F. Byard Fritts
Piano
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PLC DEPT. OF

During the past year the Depart-
ment of Speech gave special cinpha-
8is drama and interpretive
reading. All of the performances
were very well accepted. The Cur-
tain Call Club grew to a membership
of 105 students, The proceeds of the
vanous productions went to charit-
able causes. The last two years the

Parkland Children’s at Ev-

to

Home

erctt, Washington, has been the re-

cipient. Some special entertainment
was produced for the enjoyment of
the student body and faculty each
month.

In forensics the combined squad
was successful in winning  twelve
first places, nine seconds, and twelve
thirds during the competitive year
and attended one less tournament
than in the previous year.

The leading debate team has been
defeated only three times the last
year and a half, which gives to themn
one of the reeords
the country.

Mr. Theodore Karl expects that
the squad will be incrcased in
the coming year
with the arrival on the campus of
three of the best speakers from the
high school raunks during the year
past in the state of Washington, in-
cluding onc national champion or-
ator,

outstanding in

strength  during

‘0
rs |
Jean E. McGregor, Assistant

Speech, Drama

I

Theedore Q. H. Xarl, Chairman
Speech Department

Students Placed

All pre-medical and pre-dental
students that were recommended by
the P.L.C. Science Department for
placement in mcdical and dental
schools for 1950 werce placed, accord-
ing to Dr. William L. Strunk, in
chargc of that scrvice at the Col-
lege.

Fall Semester
REGISTRATION

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 11
Through
FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 15

Formal Opening

SUNDAY EVENING,
SEPTEMBER 17 — 7:30 P.M.

MEMORIAL GYMNASIUM

w

Dr. S. C. Eastvold
will give the address

SPEECH

! Vernon A. Utzinger
Speech

‘T'he Department of Speech at Pa-
cific Lutheran College is looking
forward to a very interesting and
busy year. A ncw member of the
staff in that department has been
added who has a background in the
ficld of speech which is both unique
und outstanding.

Mr. Vernon Utzinger, 49,
comes to Pacific Lutheran College
with @ wide academic background.
Having taken his Bachelor of Arts
degree at North Central College and
his Master of Arts at Northwestern
' University, he is now completing his
! work for the Doctors Degree at the
 University of Southern California.
Mr. Utzinger started his teaching
{ carecr at Carroll College tn Wiscon-
sin and for nincteen years remained
| the dircetor of that department, dur-
ing which time his forensic teams

age

lwon wide acclaim, ineluding one na-

tional Pi Kappa Delta championship.
For some twelve years he conducted
his own radio program. After leav-
ing Carroll College he continued his
groduate work at the University of
Southern California, where he
taught part time at Whittier College
in California. The men in the field
of speech who have known him the
longest recommend him  the most
highly.

“T feel especially thrilled at being
able to secure the services of Mr.
Utzinger, for he has been known for
a long time as an outstanding teach-
er, lecturer, and forensic coach,”
stated Mr. Karl, chairman of the
Dcpartment of Speech at Pacific Lu-
theran College, “This addition to
the department staff is one more
step in making our offerings among
the best in this arca,” he stated.

Mr. Utzinger will specialize in
radio and gcneral persuasion and
will assist Mr. Karl in the direction
of competitive forensic squads.

Mr. Utzinger will be accompanied
by his wife and two sons, both of
whom will be attending Pacific Lu-
theran College this fall. The Ut-
zingers will make their home in
Parkland.
| The Parkland Kiwanis Club, un-
i der the able lcadership of Herbert
| Socolofsky, raiscd $4,054 to be used
to purchasc new band uniforms. The
fund was raised from the sponsorship
of the College Choir’s homecoming
concert, plus solicitation by Kiwanis
wembers,

Dorothy Meyer of Kendrick, Ida.,
a P.L.C. graduate, has just finished
a yecar at Biblical Seminary in New
York in further preparation for for-
cign missionary work. She will leave
for India (A.L.C. fi¢ld) in Septem-
ber.

EXPANDING

u,—.___._‘,‘

Dr. S. C. Eastvold, President of
the College, has been on constant
tours during the entire school year.
Hc has spoken in states ranging from
| Minnesota, and from Canada on the
north to California on the south. Ile
| is scheduled to attend mectings in
New York and at Columbus, Ohio,
during the coming fall. One of his
chicf activities has been that of
Chairman of the Special Gifts Com-
" mittee of the United Christian Edu-
cation Appeal in the Evangelical
Lutheran Church, and as Director of
the Educational Appeal for $100,-
000 in the Northwestern District of
the American Lutheran Church. In
addition to thcese things, and being
}Pn-sident and Busincss Manager of
the College, he has given numerous
addresses before clubs and
high schools throughout the arca.

Dr. S. C. Eastvold was unanimous-
Iy elected to the office of First Vice
President of the Lu-
theran Church at its biennial con-
vention in Minnecapolis, June 21-27.
The Evangelical Lutheran Church
has a membership of 815,000 bap-
tized members.

service

Evangelical

The religious activities at the Col-
lege have been numerous during the
year. The Mission Society, L.S.A,
the groups going to the Old People’s
Home¢ and to the city and county

tentiary, the Thursday noon prayer
meetings, the special all-College
meetings for prayer in the Student
Unjon Building, the regular evening
duvotions in the girls’ dormitory and
the boys' dormitorics and round
about in the homes where the bovs

above all ¢lse, the daily chapel serv-
ices at 9:40 every school day, have
all been spiritual experiences. No
one can fully cstimate the spiritual
1273

students that have been on the cam-

impact which has gone into

pus during the twelve month period
between June, 1949, and June, 1950.

Several faculty meinbers have been
student recruiters in the various high
schools throughout Ore gon and
Washington. The College admini-
stration, as wcll as the Board of
Trustees, is very desirous that the
very finest type of young people be
admitted to the College in the fall
of 1950. Judging by rcports, the
greatest number of wvaledictorians
and top ranking studcnts cver to
register at the College have filed
their applications for entrance in
Scptember of 1950.

Pacific Lutheran College has end-
ed its first ycar as a college training
both c¢lementary and high school
teachers. The Washington State
Board of Education, in session June
24 and 25, 1949, approved a “Gen-
eral Certificate” whercby prospece-
tive tcachers may be certified to
tcach on both the clementary and
sccondary levels after 1951, It is be-
licved that the nceds of youth will
be served best by providing teachers
who arc equipped to teach at either
level. In accordance with this action
Pacific Luthcran College has
planned its curriculum for the Gen-
eral Certificate, and in the interim
before 1951 provides courses neces-
sary for elementary and secondary
certification.

Lowell Knutson, pre-scininary stu-
dent and star athlete, was elected
President of the Associated Student
Body for next year.

the Pacific Northwest to Texas, and !

jails, to McNeil Island federal peni- |

live by twos, fours and sixes. and !

Enrollment For
1950-51 Looks

Encouraging

The enrollment prospects for the
school year 1950-1951 on July 1
were the best in ycars as cited on
that date. This is rather rarc in view
of the fact that enrollments in col-
leges and universities are expected
to descend next fall and for a num-
ber of years until in 1960, when it
is expected the cnrollments will
reach the highest level in the history
of colleges and universities in Amer-
ica. Among the rcasons why enroll-
ments at P.L.C. are¢ going up year
by year may be the following: Im-
provements made in campus, build-
ings and equipment; the records be-

fessions and at higher institutions of
learning; the ever widening areas in
which the college is becoming
known, not least of all in the various
Lutheran Churches,  Students
coming from longer distances than
ever before; the high accreditation
which has been awarded to the Col-
lege because of its excellent faculty
which is rated among the best in
colleges of our kind and grade in

arce

Amcrica: the addition of many new
coursecs and departments influence
students to come to the College; the
typc of program which excludes such
practices as social dancing and puts
up strict barriors against thc drink-
ing of liquor, as well as the complete

| bar on practices such as gambling;

| the carcful supervision of students in
the dormitories, with the fine coop-
cration on the part of the students
involved; P.L.C. is the only accred-

ited senior Lutheran College on the
cntire Pacific Coast, and indced in
the west two-fifths of the nation; the
increasing attractions to those who
arc lcarning to know about us and

i the elimate which makes it possible
for students fromn the cold areas to

ing made by our graduatcs in pro-!

live where the grass is green mostl

winters thraughout the entire period -

(last year was an cxception when a
prriod of snow and ice came to the
| west as in every other part of the
nation) ; the increasing number of
people in the west, running into tens
of thousands of pcople that came
when the nation was on wheels dur-
ing war time, Many of those who
were in the west and went back
again to their homes and associates
in the Middle West are again begin-
ning to come into the area and send
their children and young people to
the College; not least of all is the
i spiritual  cmiphasis  which  attracts
pcople who want to attend college
under the special Christian empha-
- sis which is at the top of the pro-
gram at P.L.C.; and lastly, the
fricndlincss on the part of teachers
and students is exemplary, many be-
lieve.

| Enrollment for summer soars. The
Summier Session enrollment reached
a new high this year, indicating in-
creased interest on the part of teach-
ers and students in accelerating their
programs. Courses arc offered in the
ficld of Elementary Education for
students who wish to work for their
principal’s eredentials, as well as for
those sccking to complete the fifth
vear for teaching on the Secondary
level. The regular faculty ef the Col-
lege has been supplemented by spe-
cial teachers in the ficld of educa-
tion. The first five-week term of the
Summer Session opened on Monday,
June 12, and closed on Friday, July
14. Classcs for the second five-week
term began on Monday, July 17,

e : A
Williain Eugene Torget
Business Administration

Mr. William Eugene Torget will
join the College faculty in Septem-
ber of this vear. He was born at
Puget Island, Washington, in Janu-
ary of 1920. He is married and has
one child threc years of age. He was
educated in Wahkiakum High
School and has received the degrees
Bachclor of Arts and Master of Arts
at the University of Washington, His
major is Public Finance and Taxa-
tion, his minor Economic¢ Theory
and Labor. He is a micmber of the
organized naval reserve, 1946-1950.
He was 2 member of the State Tax
Commission, Olympia, Washington,
June, 1947 to June, 1949 and was
an auditor with the Excise Division
and with the
property valuation division.

He was a teaching fellow at the
University of Washington, Seattle,
teaching statistics in the School of
Economics and Business. He has been
a ygraduatce rescarch assistant at the
University of Washington with re-
search of racial scgregation in the

valuation assistant

Socioloyy Department.

He has had military service duty
with the United States Navy March,
1942 to April, 1946. His hobbies are
photography and numismatics. He is
» member of the Lutheran Augus-
tana Synod.

Pacific Lutheran College faculty
nictibers continue to be in demand
as speakers at local and nearby serv-
ice clubs, churches and other organ-
izations. A sprakers bureau provided
representatives at nearly all the
churches of the Northwestern Dis-
trict in preparation for the appeal
which had its official beginning on
June 11, 1950.

Marilyn Pflueger, a member of
the class of 1950 of Pacific Luthcran
College, has been awarded a two-
year assistantship in the School of
Personnel and Counsclling at  the
University of Syracuse, in Syracuse,
New York. She will work for a Mas-
ters Degree in the ficld of Guidance.
She is a daughter of Dr. J. P.
Pflueger, Profcssor of Religion and
Philosophy at P.L.C.

Guttorm Gregerson of Lakewood,
Washington, P.L.C. ’46, was award-
cd a Fulbright scholarship by the
U. S. Department of State for grad-
uate study in cconomics and history
at the University of Oslo, Norway.
This is Gregerson's sccond Fulbright
award.

More than 100 persons registered
for the regional P.T.A. Workshop
which was held at P.L.C. July 10 to
14. Delegates from six counties in
attended the
event, Leading educators from the
college, city and state systems took
part in the program.

The delegates heard experts in all

western Washington

and will end on Friday, August 18. f ficlds of education. Some took the:
(Total summer cnrollment: 468) ! course for academic credit.
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Athletic Loyalty
League Newest
Organization

On May 22, 1950, a brand new | lioges are known to be taking similar
to be!

organization was launched,
known as the “Pacific Luthcran Col-
lege Athletic Loyalty Leaguc.” This
title boils down to “P.L.C. - A.L.LL."
A letter over the signatures of Marv
Harshman, Coach; Marv Tammecer-
vil:, Coach; Philip E. Hauge, Dean;

[

the same because they desired to
have membership in thc American |
Association of University Worncn.
One of the demands from that or-
ganization is that women arc given
a place on the governing board of
the colleges which enter into that
organization. Other Lutheran col-
steps.

In addition to the election of of-
ficers, the chief matter that came be-
forc the Board was an authorization
given to the Board of ‘Trustecs of
Pacific Luthcran Colloge to borrow

‘be a room 24 feet by 26 feet and

{100, It will have a 16x24 foot cle-
vated stage. There will be three aux- |
| iliary rooms, including an announc-

Dream of Chapel
Music, Speech
Bldg. Realized

(Continued from Page One)

| et's booth, a control room and 2
{ dressing room.
‘ In the bascrnent of the building
{ there will be a heating plant for this
console up front to the left of the building, and it will also be of suffi-
stage. The organ chambers will he cicnt size to heat the proposed womn-
cn’s dormitories.
Cloister Walk

A cloister walk is planncd between
26 feet high for the construction of | o 00 oo ontrance of Old Main
scenery for plays. Four large dress- 4 the cast entrance of the new
ing rooms will be located under the | oy b0 Music-Specch building. This

in the ceiling.
Adjacent to the stage therc will |

moncy from the federal government

and S. C. Eastvold, President, invited
all foriner students, alumni, faculty

and o scleet number of friends to
become charter members of the
P.L.C.-A.L.L. Included in the lot-
ter was a monograra which
made up in the colors of the Collegc,
black and gold, made in the form
of a sticker like the Red Cross stick-
er, to be placed in the rear window
of the or on the front
door of the homic or any other place
convenient,

The design of the Athletic Loyalty
League is to raise funds to give fi-
nancial support to certain fine young
men who would like to attend Pa-
cific Lutheran College and give their
athlctic talents to the competitive
ports, but who would not he able to
attend Colleze withoutr some outside

automoinle

Was | the puiposc of building dormitories

support. This new organization was |

formed following a resolution passed

by the Board of Trustees which

thanked one friend who had g‘i\'l'nJ‘\rt, resigned after ten
$2,500 to be nsed for the support| cnters private cnterprise.

of athletics during the coming school

year, Tt was felt that several hun-'_\ign(-d to take over her howme work.

dred people could give somc‘wherr:|
$1 and $2,500. A great
many people will consider it a privi-
lege to have the opportunity to give
a small sum toward aiding the fine
young men we invitc te be athletes
at Pacific Lutheran College.

between

This is just a reminder to inany
who received that letter and to oth-
who did not it. Send
your gifts and financial suppert
dircct to the College and mark the
same for this organization, and it

ers receive

will be used for the purpose desig-
nated. Thank you in advance.

The College baseball tecain had a
very good scason. While it appcared

at the beginning that we would ¢nd
up as champions of the Evergreen
Conference, we finally ended up sec-

ond to C.P.S., while we tied two|

and two in the home games.

It looks good for the P.L.C. ath-
letes in all fields of athletics for the
fall of 1550.

First Woman Is
Elected to PLC

Board Trustees

The Pacific Lutheran College Cor-
poration convened June 23, 1950, at
Central Lutheran Church, Minne-
apolis, Minncsota. The Rev. M. J.
K. Fuhr, Arlington, Washington, and
Mr. Chris Knutzen, of Burlington,
Washington, were re-clected to the
Pacific Luthcran College Board of
Trustces, cach for a term of three
years. Mrs. Arnold [, Anderson, Se-
attle, Washington, wos elected to the
Board for a ternr of two vears to fill
a vacancy which ocecurred when Rev.
0. A Schmidt moved out of the
District, Mrs. Aaderson, wife of Ar-
nold . Anderson, Pastor of the Bal-
lard First Lutheran Church, Scattle,
Washington, becomes the first wom-
an to serve on the Board of Trustees
of Pacific Lutheran College during‘
its fifty-six years of history. A wom-
an member on the Board came as a
request of the

from the women

under the provision which has been
passed by Congress to loan money
to colleges and universities at 2.75%
interest with prineipal to be repaid
in not to execeed forty years, for

and housing for students and faculty.
The College nceds housing for at
lcast 200 girls. The Board of Trus-
tees has already passed resolutions to
set up two dormitories, holding 100
oirls cach when and if the snoncy
cun be provided by the federal gove-
vroment.

Faculty Changes

Harlem G. Moen, band and l)r—"
take over a
similar position at the local public
schoaols.
Mrs. Geo Rencau, retires after 17
years at P.L.C.
Miss Dora

chestra, resigned, to

A. Bcrg.

teacher of
years. She
Mprs. Regina Seligh, Biology, re-

Mrs. Pauline Schaffer, Speccech
and Drama, rcturns to Stanford
University to acquire a Doctor of
Philosophy degree.

Appeal Baeked by
Northwest District

(Continued from Page Onec’

will begin and when it may reason-
ablv be expected to be concluded,
and

THAT, this solicitation be con-
cluded, if possible, before the general
convention of the American Luther-
an Church to be held in Columbus, |
Ohio, October 5 to 12, 1950, and |

THAT, the Convention unitedly
and sincercly and reverently prays'
God’s richest blessing on the Ingath-
cring which starts next Sunday, June
11, 1950, and is to continuc until
the werk is completed by December |
31, 1950.

WHEREAS, Pacific Lutheran Col-
lege has let the contract for its new |
Chapcl-Music-Speech building at a
total cost of approximately $600,-
000, and

WHEREAS, the minimuimn
for the Northwestern District has
been sct at $100,000, the sarne be-
ing the minimnm necded by the
Building Committec of the College
to complete the building, and

WHEREAS, twenty per cent eof
the $100,000 is pledged to the Cen-
tral Committee with De. William

gomul

I system of cach

" will be fourteen practice rooms with

Young and Dr. H. F. Schuh as
Chairman and General Director, re-
spectively, with full authority to di-
vide the 20% togcther with the
$100,000 alrcady in hand from the
W.M.F. of the American Lutheran
Church,
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,
THAT, the Northwestern District :
respectfully reguests and  petitions |
the Chairman and General Dircctor |
of the 1950 Ingathering for Educa- |
tion that the refund to the North- |
western District for Pacific Lutheran ‘
Collcge be as gencrous as possible
so that the minimum amount of
$100,000 may be on hand for build- \

Church, and they in turn requested | ing purposes.

Ccription roormt.

stagce.

The auditerium and chapcl lobby
will be 28 by 35 feet in size. Tt will |
contain display cases, cloak rooms |
and ticket booths. On the balcony,
or second floor level, there will be

a lounge which will also be used for|
art exhibits, teas, receptions, cte. The
third floor
chapel which will scat about 75 per-
sons. A 13-feot of
stained glass will form the backdrop
for the chapel altar. It is hoped that
somebody reading these lines will he

will be a decvetional

rose window

willing to pay for that great window

i which will be above the altar in the
~small chapel room.

For Daily Chapel

The daily chapel exercises will be
held in the main auditorium. This
will fulfill Dr. Eastvold’s dream to
have a chapel as the center for re-
ligious on the campus.
Daily chapel services have been held
in the gymnasium the past three |
vears, and prior to that they were |
hdd in Trinity Church, across th(‘,

activities

111

street from the College.

The chapel and studios
and practice rooms in the clnssrtmmI
unit of the new bmnilding will bel
completely soundproof. John Rich-'
ards, representative of the architec-
tural firro, stated that the very lat- |
est features of music and auditorium
buildings throughout the nation are

speach

incorporated in the structure. Don-|
ald Loy of Los Angcles, California, |
an outstanding accoustical consuit-‘
ing engineer, was uvngaged by the|
architects to assist in the “sound |
control designing.” [
Floating Rooms

Every room will be a room within
a rooin. The floor, wall and ceiling
roem will “float.”
This “floating™ is obtained by sus-
pending the room so that it does not
have direct contact with the rest of
the This
cach room completely soundproof.

For the Music Department there

building. process makes

pianos. There will alo be two organ
practice rooms. There will be five
rnusic studios for members of the
music faculty.

The band and orchestra room will
be 40x42 fccet and will have built-in
risers. Adjacent to it will be an in-
struunent storawe room. A similar
roomn for the “Choir of the West”
and Chorus will be next to the band
room. On the same floor will be a
music library.

Transcription Room

Most of these practice rooms and
studios will bc wired so that record-
ings can be made from them. The
transcription room, with cutting
hcad, will be in the basemcent of the
building. Thec rooms will also be
wired so that the recordings can be
played back to them from the trans-

The Speech Department will have
two offices and two classrooms. Onc
classroem will seat about 50, and the
other, which is also a radio studio,
will scat about 100. There will also
space for futurc of
specelt pathology and correction lab-
oratory. |

Radio Studio |

radio studio will seat ahout}

be inclusion

The

| that, according to the hope expressed

' cloister walk, which will be a roof
over the sidewalk, is being desizned
by a special architectural firm io-
cated at Spokane, Washington. Ac-
cording to present plans, the roof
will he sct on cedar posts with cedar
beams on which will be sandblasted
the life of Christ, beinning from the
nativity to the resurrection. Should |
this becomne a reality, with a bulletin
hoard at the intersection of the side-
walk that runs between the Science
and the Library buildings, a cloister
walk may be included between those
buidings as well, on which will be
sandblasted the story of science on
one end and literature near the li-
brary c¢nd of the cloister walk. In
P.L.C, area whore there

the is so

much rain during the winter time,
it will be conducive for many finr'.‘
things to have such cquipment be- |
tween the four main buildings on
the campus.

Students Seek |
Instruction For
Confirmation

Since the fall of 1948, Profcssor
Kelmer N. Roe has instructed and
prepared fifty students at Pacific
Lutheran College for confirmation
in the Luthcran Church. The fourth
instruction class madc its confirma-|
tion vows in Trinity Lutheran|
Church, Parkland, on May 7.

Mr. Williain Muse, a colored stu-
dent at Pacific Lutheran College,
who was chairman of the class which
was confirmed May 7, 1950, stated
before the fine audicnce on  that
occasion, the following: “We prom-
is¢ much but how could we promise
less and yet be Christians. How could |
we stand before the altar of Christ;
and

bl

think of minimums, knowing
that we arc in the presence of Him
who dicd horrible dcath
cross for our redemption?”

|
on the|

Y

Scven out of the seventeen con-
firmands on that occasion were also
received into the Christian  faith
through Christian baptism. Follow-
ing the confirmation service, the
class was welcomed into the L.S.A.
and presented by that organization
with pins which svmbolized their
membership in the group. All those
who were present on that memor-
able occasion prayed that God, Who
had begun this work in them, might
keep them steadfast in His grace and

by President S. C. Eastvold in his
confirmation sermon, they might re-
turn te the valley of everyday ex-

George Roskos
ArY

M. George Roskos, age 28, grad-
uated from the Farrell High School,
Farrell, Pennsylvania, in 1941. He
araduated with the degree, Bachelor
of Scicnce from Youngstown College,
Youngstown, Ohio, with a major in
art and a minor in cdncation. He
was in the Army Air Force 1942-46.
He holds an Ohie Teachers Certifi-
cate for art. He completes his work
far the Master of Arts degree in Art
Education at the Statec University of
Towa, lowa City, Iowa.

Frances M. Camp, Dircctor of Art
at the State University of Iowa, says
of Mr. Roskos: “I can endorse him
with much confidence, and 1 fecl
that you will find him a candidate
worthy of consideration. Mr. Roskos
has finc pcrsonal qualifications, and,
in addition, posscsses a good Dback-
ground in art.”

Mr. Frank Wachowisk, Assistant
Professor of Art Education at the
State University of Iowa, says about
Mr. Roskos: “I observed his work
with children the eclementary
scheel and discovered him to be
sympathetic, understanding, and
alert to the many problems in art
creativity, He was cooperative at all
times and cvidenced a great interest

n

lin the growth ef the art program.

He has had experience in tcaching
of art in public schools. He is aware,
I feel, of the seriousness of the teach-
er’s responsibility and the challenge
of the new philosophies in art edu-
cation.”

The Elementary Sch oo l-Critic
Teacher of the State University of
fowa says about Mr. Roskos: “He
did student tcaching in my art clas-
ses at the University of Iowa Eie-
mentary School. I feel that Mr. Ros-
kos has szome ateri-

very favorable

| . .
| butes which make him a good teach-

er, in particular—a finc voice and a
well-adjusted personality. He also
has a good art background, which
includes training in sculpture, paint-
ing, art history as well as art cdu-
cation. Considering this and hig stu-
dent tcaching experience here, I
would feel confident in reccommend-
ing Mr. Roskos for tcaching posi-
tions at any school level including
college—preferably in the ficld of
art education.”

In his undergraduate work he was
always a lcader of his class. He is
intensely interested in his field. He
is both creative and cxperimental

istence from this “mountain top” and 1t is certain that he will be a
expeticnce “secing Jesus only.” definite asset to Pacific Luthcran
Collesgc.

Anmeng the fifty students con-
firmed during the past three semes-
ters, there were thirty-two men and
eighteen women. The various classes
met wecekly in the hospitable home
of the teacher, Professor Kelmer N.
Roc. ‘

Arnother class which is alicady |
starting to form will begin to take |
instruction at the opening of the |
school yecar 1950, ]

In his youth he was confirmed in
the Slovak Lutheran Church.

Myrs. Roskos is also a teacher of
art and holds thc Master of Art de-
aree in Art froin the State University
of Towa. They will arrive at the
College about September 7.

N:,’u; Students
Enroll Now!



